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Bef ore: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Proceedi ngs

These proceedi ngs concern petitions for assessnent of civil
penalties filed by the petitioner against the respondent on July
27 and 28, 1978, pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S. C. 00820(a), charging the
respondent with several mine safety violations issued pursuant to
the 1969 Federal Coal Mne Health and Safety Act. Respondent
filed tinmely answers in the proceedi ngs, asserted several factua
and | egal defenses, and hearings were held in Salt Lake City,

Ut ah, on Novenber 15, and 16, 1978. Respondent filed proposed
findi ngs and conclusions and a brief, and the argunents contai ned
t herei n have been considered by ne in the course of these
deci si ons.



| ssues

The principal issues presented in these proceedings are (1)
whet her respondent has viol ated the provisions of the Act and
i npl enenting regulations as alleged in the petitions for
assessnment of civil penalties filed in these proceedings, and, if
so, (2) the appropriate civil penalties that should be assessed
agai nst the respondent for each alleged viol ation, based upon the
criteria set forth in section 110(i) of the Act. Additiona
i ssues raised by the parties are identified and di sposed of in
the course of these decisions.

In determ ning the anmount of a civil penalty assessment,
section 110(i) of the Act requires consideration of the foll ow ng
criteria: (1) the operator's history of previous violations, (2)
t he appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business
of the operator, (3) whether the operator was negligent, (4) the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, (5) the
gravity of the violation, and (6) the denonstrated good faith of
the operator in attenpting to achi eve rapid conpliance after
notification of the violation

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal Coal Mne Health and Safety Act of 1969, 30
U S.C. 0801 et seq., now the Federal Mne Safety and Heal th Act
of 1977, P.L. 95-164, effective March 9, 1978.

2. Sections 109(a)(1) and (a)(3) of the 1969 Act, 30 U S.C
M819(a)(1l) and (a)(3), now section 110(i) of the 1977 Ac

Di scussi on

The al |l eged viol ations and applicable mandatory safety
standards in issue in these proceedings are as foll ows:

DOCKET NO DENV 78-521-P

Section 104(b) Notice of Violation 8-0005 1 JODL, January
9, 1978, cites a violation of 30 CFR 75.517, and states as
foll ows:

The 440 volt power cable for the No. 3 belt drive

| ocated in the main South West section was not being
fully protected in the No. 5 entry at the No. 1
crosscut in that, the outer half of the right front
tire on the Wagner scoop tram serial no. 395.75 was
sitting on this cable.

30 CFR 75.517 provides as follows: "Power wres and cabl es,
except trolley wires, trolley feeder wires, and bare signa
wi res, shall be insulated adequately and fully protected.”
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Testinmony and Evi dence Adduced by the Petitioner

Federal coal nmine inspector Jerry O D. Lenpn testified that
he issued the notice of violation on January 9, 1978, while
i nspecting the m ne. Wien he wal ked in the section, nine
personnel were in the process of noving a power unit and he
observed the 440-volt power cable under the right front tire of a
di esel scoop. The tire was resting on top of the cable, and was
next to the right rib and "there was a little coal over the
cable.” He advised the people present that by "sitting on the
cable"” there was a violation of section 75.517. The scoop was
t her eupon backed up approximately a foot, the cable was pulled up
out of the coal, and work commrenced. He checked the cable after
it was pulled out of the coal and coul d detect no visible damage
(Tr. 14-17).

I nspector Lenon testified that the scoop is a big piece of
machinery and it is easy not to see a cable along the rib. He did
not believe the violation was intentional, and believed that the
scoop operator sinply did not see the cable. The scoop was being
turned and was being used to facilitate the novenent of the
electrical unit, and the scoop bucket was about 3 or 4 inches off
the ground while assisting in nmoving the unit. The scoop was
idling and the operator was seated in the cab, and he did not
observe the scoop nove up on the cable. The tire, being close to
the rib, would make it difficult for someone to wal k between the
rib and scoop (Tr. 17-20).

The inspector testified that the violation was nonseri ous
because there was no danage to the cable. However, he considered
the situation to be an unsafe practice because if the cable were
damaged, it would present a hazardous situation in the event
sonmeone picked up an energi zed damaged cable (Tr. 20-21).

On cross-exanm nation, Inspector Lenon indicated that the
term "probabl e" as used in Part 100, Title 30, Code of Federa
Regul ations, with respect to the gravity of a violation, neans
"it is likely to happen.”" He marked the item | abl ed "Probabl e"
under the "Gravity" heading in nunbered paragraph 1 on his
i nspector's statenment (Exh. p-3), because he thought there m ght
have been sone damage to the cable, but he could not determne
any damage from vi sual observation since he is not an electrica
i nspector. Wiile the cable was "in good shape,” there was a
possibility that something could happen. The event agai nst which
the cited standard is directed, as that termis used in the
"Gravity" statenment, was the possibility of the electrocution of
a mne enployee in the event the cable were damaged (Tr. 23-29).
He reiterated that the scoop was backed up first, and the cable
was then lifted up and tied off by means of a piece of wire. The
cable was lying under the right front tire. He also indicated
that it is his practice to nake notes at the scene of a violation
and that he uses the notes as the basis for conpleting
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his inspector's statement for each violation issued. He tries not
to include anything in his statenent other than what he observes,
al t hough he has included coments nmade by individuals on the
scene, particularly in "inmmnent danger" cases and "serious-type"
viol ations, and he has, on occasion, included such statenents
under "Remarks" on his report (Tr. 39-43).

Testi nmony Adduced by the Respondent

Roger J. Black, mne nmechanic, testified that he is
responsi ble for the mai ntenance of equipnment in the nmine, and
that he was present the day |Inspector Lenon cited the violation
in question. He testified that the cable in question was
originally lying in the cut of the rib where it is normally
stored, but fell out and was lying at the side of the tire with
some coal on top of it when the inspector happened on the scene.
VWhen it was pointed out to him he pulled the cable up on the rib
and tied it up. The cabl e had been "di sconnected outside," and
the fuses on the main transfornmer had been pulled. He had no
recol l ection that the scoop was noved first before the cable was
pul | ed up, but does not believe the scoop was nmoved (Tr. 47-48).

On cross-exam nation, M. Black stated that the cable fel
off the rib down next to the scoop tire, and he was aware that
t he cabl e had been di sconnected and deenergi zed because one
cannot touch such a cable unless it is disconnected at the
surface. He could not recall whether the scoop was backed off the
cable, but he did renenber pulling the cable up to the side of
the tire. He indicated that the cable fell down froma cut in the
rib some 3 feet after the scoop was parked, and he confirned that
the scoop was idling. He believed that the cable in question was
being fully protected, but he did not realize it had fallen down
fromthe rib. Since the scoop tires are concave, it is possible
that the cable was situated in such a way that one would believe
it was resting under the scoop tire (Tr. 49-54).

DOCKET NO DENV 78-522-P

Section 104(b) Notice of Violation 80010, 2 JODL, January
19, 1978, cites a violation of 30 CFR 75. 313, and states as
foll ows:

The met hane nmonitor serial no. 269A nmounted on the
ST-5DS Wagner Scoop serial no. 395.75 being used inby
the I ast open crosscut in the no. 7 entry of the Miin
South section to | oad coal was not being properly

mai nt ai ned or kept in a operative condition in that,
this systemwoul d not automatically shut the diese
engi ne down when the nonitor test button was pushed and
the nmonitor indicator indicated 2 % net hane.
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30 CFR 75. 313 provi des:

The Secretary or his authorized representative shal
require, as an additional device for detecting
concentrations of nethane, that a nethane nonitor
approved as reliable by the Secretary after March 30,
1970, be installed, when avail able, on any electric
face cutting equi pnment, continuous mner, |longwall face
equi prent, and | oadi ng machi ne, except that no nonitor
shall be required to be installed on any such equi pnent
prior to the date on which such equi prment is required
to be perm ssible under 0O75.500, 75.501, and 75.504.
VWhen installed on any such equi pnent, such nonitor
shal | be kept operative and properly naintained and
frequently tested as prescribed by the Secretary. The
sensi ng device of such nonitor shall be installed as
close to the working face as practicable. Such nonitor
shall be set to deenergize automatically such equi prent
when such nonitor is not operating properly and to give
a warni ng automatically when the concentration of

nmet hane reaches a maxi mum percent age determ ned by an
aut hori zed representative of the Secretary which shal
not be nore than 1.0 vol une per centum of methane. An
aut hori zed representative of the Secretary shal

requi re such nonitor to deenergize automatically

equi prent on which it is installed when the
concentration of nethane reaches a maxi mum percent age
determ ned by such representative which shall not be
nmore than 2.0 vol une per centum of nethane.

Testi nony Adduced by the Petitioner

Respondent conceded and stipulated to the fact of a
viol ation of section 75.313, and indicated that it contests only
t he proposed assessnment made in the anount of $120 (Tr. 58-59).
Petitioner was pernmitted to present testinony by the inspector
with respect to the violation, and particularly with respect to
the question of gravity and negligence.

I nspector Lenon confirmed that he issued the citation on
January 19, 1978, citing a violation of 30 CFR 75.313, after
finding the nmethane nmonitor on an ST-5DS Wagner scoop, serial No.
395.75, was not mmintained in a workable condition. He has never
detected the presence of nethane from bottle sanples he has
taken. He extended the abatenment tine after being advised that
repairs could be made within 30 m nutes. However, additional tinme
was required by the operator because it was discovered that parts
had to be ordered, and he granted an additional 2 or 3 days, or
until 8 a.m, January 23, 1978, for abatenent. He returned to the
m ne at approximately 11:35 a.m on January 23, and after being
advi sed by the section foreman that the machi ne had been
repai red, he proceeded to
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i nspect the machine and found that the nethane nonitor was stil
mal functioning in that it would not deenergize the machi ne. Under
the circunstances, he had no alternative but to issue the order
prohi biting further use of the machine (Tr. 59-62).

I nspector Lenon identified Exhibit P-9 as a "gravity
statement” he prepared and stated that, being a new inspector, he
had made a mistake in listing 20 mners as bei ng exposed to any
hazard. That figure should have reflected the nunber of persons
wor ki ng on the shift, which ranged fromsix to nine (Tr. 63).

Al t hough I nspector Lenon testified that a "possible hazard" was
present, petitioner's counsel stipulated that in the absence of
any nethane, the violation cited was nonserious (Tr. 64, 73). M.
Lenon believed the respondent shoul d have been aware of the
condition cited because nmethane nonitors are required to be
checked and calibrated periodically (Tr. 64-65).

On cross-exam nation, Inspector Lenon testified that he did
not know whet her the nonitor in question had been calibrated and
i ndi cated that he found no problens with respondent's failure to
check or calibrate nethane nonitors in the mne. To his
know edge, calibration had been nmade to insure conpliance. M.

Lenon did not fill out the "Good Faith" portion of his "gravity
statenment” and crossed it out because he is instructed not to
fill out that portion when an order has been issued (Tr. 69-70).

M. Lenon did not know whet her the machine in question was
used on Thursday afternoon or Friday after he cited the
violation. He confirned that the nethane nonitor would not
deener gi ze the machi ne when he tested it again on Monday, January
23, and he was told that there was a problemw th |inkage being
di sconnected on the solenoid. M. Lenon stated that he indicated
on his gravity statenent that the occurrence of the event against
which the cited standard was directed was "probable.” The "event"
he referred to was that he believed it was likely that if the
face were shot while equipnrent was running, and if 2-percent
nmet hane were found, which admttedly was not the case, the
equi prent woul d likely not shut down (Tr. 71-73).

Respondent' s Testi nony

Roger J. Black, mne mechanic, testified that when the
citation issued on January 19, the scoop was taken out to the
shop. The injector housing |inkage had broken. The housing is not
a stock itemand an order was placed for a housing and the
| i nkage was sol dered in the housing and renmpunted on the injector
punp. The scoop was taken back into the m ne on January 23. \Wen
tested in idle speed, the scoop nethane nonitor would turn off
t he machi ne. When the machine was reved up to 1,800 rpnms in M.
Lenon's presence, it would not shut off and adjustments had to be
made to the linkage in order to enable it to shut off at higher
rpns (Tr. 83-86).
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On cross-exam nation, M. Black testified that if the nmachi ne had

not been reved up to 1,800 rpns, it would have shut down when the
met hane test button was activated. He could not recall telling
M. Lenon that the machine had been in the shop, but believed he
told himit would shut down at an idle speed (Tr. 86-87).

Section 104(b) Notice of Violation 8-0015, 4 JODL, January
30, 1978, cites a violation of 30 CFR 75.200-2, and states as
foll ows:

The approved roof control plan was not being conplied
with in the no. 3 entry face in the Main South West
section in that the straight away face had been
conpletely cleaned and no roadway tinber had been
installed. Fromthe |ast roof support (road way) tinber
to the deepest point of penetration in the face it was
an approxi mate di stance of 42 feet.

The approved roof control plan states that roof
supports shall be installed to within 15 feet of the

cl eaned face, and that this roadway shall be maintained
15 feet wide on the straight and that these supports be
installed on 5 foot centers and 4 feet fromthe rib
line.

The notice was subsequently nodified on February 6, 1978, to
correct the citation reference fromsection 75.200-2 to 75.200
(Tr. 106-107, Exh. P-12).

30 CFR 75. 200, provides:

Each operator shall undertake to carry out on a
continuing basis a programto inprove the roof control
system of each coal mne and the means and neasures to
acconpl i sh such system The roof and ribs of all active
under ground roadways, travelways, and working pl aces
shal | be supported or otherw se controlled adequately
to protect persons fromfalls of the roof or ribs. A
roof control plan and revisions thereof suitable to the
roof conditions and m ning system of each coal m ne and
approved by the Secretary shall be adopted and set out
in printed formon or before May 29, 1970. The plan
shal | show the type of support and spaci ng approved by
the Secretary. Such plan shall be revi ewed
periodically, at least every 6 nonths by the Secretary,
taking into consideration any falls of roof or ribs or

i nadequacy of support of roof or ribs. No person shal
proceed beyond the | ast permanent support unless
adequat e tenporary support is provided or unless such
tenmporary support is not required under the approved
roof control plan and the absence of such support will
not pose a hazard to the miners. A copy of the plan
shall be furnished to the Secretary or his authorized
representative



and shall be available to the mners and their
representatives.

I nspector Lenon testified that upon inspection of the mne
on January 30, 1978, he found a violation of section 75.200 in
that the respondent failed to followits approved roof control
plan (Exh. P-28) in that in the No. 3 entry face of the Miin
Sout hwest Section, the straightaway face had been conpletely
cl eaned and no roadway tinber had been installed fromthe |ast
roof support for a distance of approximately 42 feet fromthe
poi nt of deepest penetration. The roof plan requires that roof
supports be installed within 15 feet of the face, that the
roadway be maintained 15 feet on the straight, and that roof
supports be installed on 5-foot centers approximately 4 feet from
the rib line (Tr. 124). The mining cycle was in the cleanup
stage, and under the plan, tinber was required within 20 feet of
the face. He determ ned the 42-foot distance by use of a tape
throwmn fromthe | ast roof support toward the face. H s actua
nmeasurenent was 44 feet, but he allowed 2 feet for the end of the
tape tied to a rock. Six tinbers set on 5-foot centers were
required (Tr. 124-129).

I nspect or Lenon believed the respondent was negligent in
allowing the cited condition to exist. The face boss shoul d have
been aware of the fact that four tinbers had not been set prior
to the equi pment conpleting the cl eanup, although the face boss
was not in the area at the tine. The | oader operator was
negligent by going in the area because the roof control plan has
been explained to the mners and the safety director has
explained it to the nen. Inspector Lenon observed the | oader
com ng out of the area with a |oad of coal, but saw no one el se
there. He did not know whether the nissing posts had been
previously set, and he just did not see any. In addition, he saw
no drilling or shooting taking place, but this could have been
done on a previous shift. The operator is allowed to renove two
posts during the cleanup process and three posts during the
cl eanup of the gob (Tr. 130-133).

I nspector Lenon indicated that roof falls have occurred in
the ol der part of the mine, but the roof area at the point of the
violation was tested and it was not drummy (Tr. 134, 138). He
could not say whether the violation in question was serious. The
roof at the |ast support was sound and he shoul d have i ndicated
"inmprobabl e,” rather than "probable” on his gravity statenent
(Tr. 139).

On cross-exam nation, M. Lenon testified that he becane the
i nspector at the mine in question in January 1978. He reiterated
the nmethod used to neasure the 42-foot distance stated in the
citation, and his tape did not cross a crosscut. The |ast tinber
support was at a corner where a turn was proceeding to the right
at a crosscut. As he approached the face, he observed the | oader
| eaving and coming toward him and it was about 180 feet down the
entry, and
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safety director Bob Kales was with him The crew began setting tim
bers within 10 m nutes of his measurement (Tr. 141, 144-151).

M. Lenon testified that under a subsequent plan effective
May 30 (Exh. P-29), tinbers may be renpoved whil e cleaning the gob
(Tr. 156). Wen he arrived on the scene, the area had been
cl eaned up and the | oader had the last |oad in the bucket (Tr.
157). The roof at the last support was sound, and he visually
observed the roof conditions. The roof | ooked good, sounded solid
when tested, and he saw no cracks (Tr. 160). He could not check
the roof inby the last support, and being unsupported, it could
possi bly come down. He could not state whether it would probably
come down, but indicated it was a "good probability"” and believed
that it was probable there was going to be a roof fall in the
unsupported area (Tr. 162). Al though roof falls had occurred in
m ne areas which had been mi ned out over 10 or 15 years, this

woul d still indicate that when pillars are pulled, that process
woul d substantially affect the probability or possibility of a
roof fall. However, in this case, pillars had not been pull ed.

VWhen roof strata begins to take weight, the tinmbers will begin to
split and start flaking. However, there was no wei ght on the
tinmbers along the entry leading to the face area in question, and
he saw no evidence that the tinbers were taking weight in the
entry or the faces. He did not go beyond the tinber support and
did not | ook beyond it (Tr. 162-165).

Petitioner's counsel stipulated that the m ne roof
conditions are such that roof bolts are required as in other
mnes (Tr. 168). M. Lenon confirned that his notes taken on
January 30 reflect that he did not believe the violation was
"significant and substantial™ (Tr. 171). Inspector Lenon
i ndi cated that the one person exposed to the hazard of
unsupported roof was the | oader operator, even though he was
under a protective cab (Tr. 176).

Respondent' s Testi nony

John Dani o, enployed by respondent as a m ning engi neer for
2-1/2 years, holds a BS degree in mning engineering, and is a
regi stered engineer in the States of Colorado and U ah. He wote
the roof control plan currently in effect at the mne and has
been in the mne some 150 tines in the working areas. He has
surveyed the mine and is famliar with all of the places,

i ncluding the old works, and the mne conditions (Tr. 180-183).

M. Danio stated that in recently mned areas, bad roof has
not been encountered. A year and a half ago, there was a roof
fall in a belt entry, but he was in the area 8 or 10 hours before
the rock fell and it was obvious to everyone that the top was
bad. The area was dangered of f and precauti ons were taken before
the rock fell. He is unaware of any other roof falls in the mne
within the past 5 years.
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He described the roof conditions and roof strata in the mne

O der areas m ned over 20 years ago have had roof falls, and
those areas are still traveled, but have been tinbered and are
al ways checked and eval uated for hazardous roof conditions. Roof
fl aki ng does occur in the old areas, and, on occasion, snal

pi eces of coal have been found in recently mned areas (Tr.
183-186).

M. Danio testified that the m ne has an unusual roof
control plan and part of the reason for that is the excellent
nature of the roof rock, and that MSHA recognizes this fact. He
also indicated that tinbers nmust be recovered in order to renbve
coal fromthe crosscut and to facilitate the nmovenent of
equi prent (Tr. 187-188).

The parties agreed that M. Danio's testinony would al so be
applicable to the subsequent tinbering violations in issue in
Docket Nos. DENV 78-523-P and DENV 78-524-P (Tr. 188).

On cross-exam nation, M. Danio testified that he believed
the present roof control plan permts the devel opnment of two
crosscuts off an entry, plus the advancenent of the face, all in
the sane mning cycle. Anytinme one entry is 20 feet or wider, two
rows of roof supports nmust be installed. He al so expl ained the
ci rcunst ances under which tinbers nust be installed as the m ning
cycl e advances (Tr. 188-194).

M. Danio confirmed that sonme roof settlenent occurs during
blasting at the face. As for roof faults, he indicated that sone
50 hol es have been drilled over the 440 acres of the m ne and no
roof faults have been encountered (Tr. 195-196). M. Danio did
not observe the conditions cited by the inspector and had no
personal know edge of the violation (Tr. 202).

In response to questions fromthe bench, M. Danio testified
t hat one possi bl e explanation for the m ssing posts cited by
I nspect or Lenon was that the condition could occur by bad m ning
practices, that problens have occurred in the past, but
managenent i s working at inprovenments (Tr. 208).

DOCKET NO DENV 78-523-P

Section 104(c)(1) O der 7-0111, 1 DKJ, Decenber 30, 1977,
cites a violation of 30 CFR 75.316, and states as foll ows:

The Iine curtain was only being maintained to within 22
feet of the face of the No. 5 entry of the South West
section. The face had been cut with a Joy cutting
machi ne and all the curtain was extended and no
additional curtain was available in the entry. The
ventilation plan requires the line curtain be

mai ntained to within 12 feet of the area of deepest
penetrati on.
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30 CFR 75. 316, provides:

A ventilation system and net hane and dust control plan
and revisions thereof suitable to the conditions and
the m ning systemof the coal nmine and approved by the
Secretary shall be adopted by the operator and set out
in printed formon or before June 28, 1970. The plan
shall show the type and | ocati on of mechanica

ventil ation equi prent installed and operated in the

m ne, such additional or inproved equi pnent as the
Secretary may require, the quantity and velocity of air
reachi ng each working face, and such other information
as the Secretary may require. Such plan shall be
reviewed by the operator and the Secretary at | east
every 6 nonths.

Section 104(c)(1l) O der No. 7-0112, 2 DKJ, Decenber 30,
1977, cites a violation of 30 CFR 75.200, and states as fol |l ows:

Roof supports (tinmbers) were only being maintained to
within 44 feet of the face of the No. 4 entry of the
Sout h West section. The approved roof control plan
requires that tinbers be maintained to within 15 feet
of the face

Section 104(c)(1) Oder No. 7-0013, 3 DKJ, Decenber 30,
1977, cites a violation of 30 CFR 75.200, and states as fol |l ows:

Roof supports (tinmbers) were only being maintained to
within 33 feet of the face of the No. 3 entry of the
Sout h West section. The roof control plan requires that
tinbers be maintained to within 15 feet of the face.

DOCKET NO DENV 78-524-P

Section 104(c)(1) Notice 7-0110, 1 DKJ, Decenber 30, 1977,
cites a violation of 30 CFR 75.200, and states as foll ows:

Roof supports (tinmbers) were only being maintained to
within 38 feet of the face in the No. 6 entry of the
Sout h West section. The approved roof control plan
requires tinbers be maintained to within 15 feet of the
face.

In both Docket Nos. DENV 78-523-P and DENV 78-564-P
respondent stipulated to the fact of violations with respect to
the four citations issued by MSHA i nspector Dick K. Jones, and
the parties stipulated to the adoption by reference of the
previous testinmony of M. John Danio with respect to the
prevailing roof conditions at the mne (Tr. 211).

Exhi bit P-23 is a copy of the section 104(c) notice issued
by MSHA inspector Dick K Jones on Decenber 30, 1977, at 9:35 a.m
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Exhi bits P-14, P-15, and P-16 are copies of three section 104(c)
orders issued by Inspector Jones at 9:40, 10, and 10:45 a.m, al
on Decenber 30, 1977, subsequent to the issuance of the
underlying notice. Respondent stipulated to the adm ssibility of
the notice and orders (Tr. 212-213).

MSHA i nspector Dick K Jones confirmed that he issued the
104(c) notices on Decenber 30, 1977. Upon entering the mne to
conduct an inspection, he proceeded to the face of the No. 6
entry and observed that tinbers were only being maintained to
within 38 feet of the face in the No. 6 entry at the sout hwest
section. The approved roof control plan required tinbers to be
maintained to within 15 feet of the face. He verified the
di stance cited in his notice by means of a neasurenent nmade wth
his tape. Upon entering the section, he observed a piece of
equi prent coming out of the No. 5 entry, and there was a cutting
machi ne parked just ouby the No. 6 crosscut (Tr. 217). Upon
| eaving the No. 6 entry, he encountered Section Forenman LaVall ey
and informed himof the condition which he had found. M.
LaVval | ey responded "You are not telling me anything | don't
know." He and M. LaValley then proceeded to the No. 5 entry and
after observing the condition, he informed M. LaValley that he
was issuing a notice of violation. He also informed himthat he
was issuing a violation for failure to have roof supports in the
No. 6 entry. M. LaValley advised himhe was aware of the
condition and explained that it was not uncomon for himto cone
on the shift in the norning and find these conditions and that
the afternoon shift was "leaving it this way." At that point,
Safety Director Hales cane to the scene and he (Jones) advised
himas to what M. LaValley told himand M. Hales took notes.
M. Jones then went to the No. 4 and No. 3 entries and upon
finding the conditions noted in his orders, he issued the orders
(Tr. 218-220).

I nspector Jones testified there were six entries in the area
whi ch he examined and the violations were issued on four of the
entries. He believed the four entries had been nmined on Decenber
30 because of the manner in which they were cut and cl eaned and
the position of the equi pnment, and he believed that the afternoon
shift left the entries in the conditions in which he found them
He described the mning cycle, and since each cycl e advances sone
10 or 11 feet, he believed mning advanced at |east two tines
wi t hout roof supports being installed. The area was exposed to
anyone wal king in, but he did not observe anyone inby the |ast
ti mber supports in any of the entries while he was there. He was
convi nced that the mning cycle had advanced w thout setting
ti nbers, since there was no evidence that tinbers had been
installed. He observed equi pnent tracks, equipnent was present,
and m ne managenent did not deny the fact that tinbers had not
been set, and, in fact, admitted it (Tr. 220-223).
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Wth regard to the gravity of the conditions he found in the No.
6 entry, Inspector Jones testified that just inby the Iast
support there was approximately 6 feet of |oose coal which was
nearly ready to fall and it had to be renoved. He and M. Hal es
barred it down before abatenment could begin and it came down very
easily. Wiile people were in the area prior to this tine, he did
not know whet her that particul ar coal was | oose at that tine.
Approxi mately a foot of coal was barred down, and had it fallen
he woul d not have wanted to be under it (Tr. 224). Wth regard to
the line curtain violation in the No. 5 entry, a person worKki ng
inside the line curtain area would be working in a dusty

at nosphere and the mne was working with a small fan and nine
ventil ation was, at best, barely adequate. Since that tine,
conditions have inproved with the installation of another fan

O her check curtains in the area were in bad shape, but he did
not cite those because repairs were being made. He took no air
readi ngs at the face because once the area was closed by his
orders, the hazards were elimnated. At the tine he cited the

vi ol ati ons, he believed the ventilation devices were in good
shape because required face ventilation was bei ng mai ntained (Tr.
225).

M. Jones testified that he considered the violations to be
serious and that the section was in "bad shape.” He went back to
the section with respondent's engi neer, M. Sikes, to show him
the conditions, and took himto each place to show himthe
conditions. M. Sikes agreed with his findings, as did Safety
Director Hales, who expressed enbarrassnment over the condition of
the section (Tr. 227).

M. Jones identified Exhibit P-25 as the "gravity statement”
he filled out in connection with the notice citing 38 feet of
unsupported roof (Exh. P-23), and under the heading "G avity" he
checked the bl ock "Probable" and remarked that "[t]inbers are the
only means of roof support, and the top in this area is drummy
and cracked and did not appear good." He also indicated on the
formthat two workers were exposed to the hazard and remarked
that "[s]ince this face had been cut, both the coal scoop
operator and the cutting nmachi ne operator had been beyond
supports” (Tr. 229-230).

M. Jones identified Exhibit P-16 as the "gravity statement”
he prepared in connection with the line curtain violation (Exh.
P-14), and confirmed that he marked "probable,” "none" under
"Remarks," "disabling,” and "none" again under "Remarks." He al so
confirmed that he noted that two workers were exposed to the
hazard, that "the coal scoop operator and the cutting nmachi ne
operator both had been operating this equipnent inby the |ast
line curtain,” and that "the coal is | oaded out wth Wagner
di esel coal scoops, and diesel funes build up in the face when
adequate ventilation is not provided" (Tr. 230-231).

M. Jones identified Exhibit P-19 as the "gravity statenment”
he prepared in connection with the citation concerning the
44-f oot roof
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support violation (Exh. P-17), and indicated that he narked
"probabl e" under the "Gravity" heading, and remarked that "the
roof inby the last roof support was cracked and drummy and was
flaking off." He also confirmed that he indicated that any injury
woul d be "permanently disabling,"” and that he remarked "these
tinmbers are the only means of roof support and the only way to
detect if the area is taking weight." He al so noted on the form
that two workers were exposed to the hazard and renarked t hat
"the coal scoop operator and the cutting machi ne operator had
been operating inby the |ast support” and "the coal scoop had
violated the roof control plan to clean up and then the cutting
machi ne had gone in and cut the face w thout setting any support”
(Tr. 231-232).

M. Jones identified Exhibit P-22 as the "gravity statement”
he prepared in connection with the 33-foot roof support violation
(Exh. P-20), and confirned that he indicated on the formthat the
condition was "under the direct observation of managenent,"
nanely, the section foreman. He al so confirmed that he marked
"probabl e" and renmarked "possible roof fall." He al so noted on
the formthat the injury would be "disabling,"” inserted "none"
under "Remarks," that two workers were exposed to the hazard, and
remarked that "coal scoop operator, when nmaki ng nmet hane checks
and operating equi pmrent and when extending the line curtain was
exposed to the hazard" (Tr. 233).

Regarding the line curtain violation, Inspector Jones
testified that failure to extend the line curtain results in
i nadequate face ventilation and limtations on vision since the
curtain is required to sweep dust away fromthe face area. In
addition, there is a possibility of a dust ignition and the nen
can breathe in the dust. The ventilation plan required that the
curtain be maintained to within 12 feet of the face, and the dust
generated at the face is readily observable and shoul d have
alerted the operator that he was in violation. Al though he
observed a scoop coming out of an entry, he could not tel
whet her it was | oaded or not, since he was by the first entry
when he observed it come out. The place had been cl eaned up and
t he gob had been cl eaned, but he did not see the scoop inby the
line curtain. He did not take any air measurenments and the reason
for this was the fact that he had cl osed down the entry when he
i ssued his order and he believed this elimnated all hazards (Tr.
3-7, Nov. 16). He described the mning cycle which he believed
took place and assuned that at |least two cuts of coal had been
taken over a half-day shift in the three entries where he cited
roof control violations, and nmen were worki ng under unsupported
roof (Tr. 9-11). He confirnmed that when he and respondent's
Saf ety Engi neer Sikes went back to | ook at the areas cited, M
Si kes did not disagree with his findings (Tr. 12). Based on his
anal ysis of the mne roof control plan, a total of 12 additiona
ti nmbers should have been installed in the three entries cited in
his roof control violations, and failure to install them
permtted nore coal to be
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m ned on the shift. Failure to install the tinbers, however, had
a potentially detrinmental effect on the safety of the mners (Tr.
15-16).

In response to questions fromthe bench, |Inspector Jones
indicated that at the tinme the violations were issued, the mne
at nosphere was cl ear and no equi pnent was operating. His
testimony concerning the hazardous conditions assuned that these
conditions existed during prior normal mning operations inby the
line curtain and tinbering areas noted in his citations. Had it
not been for the tinbering violations, he would not have shut the
section down because of the ventilation curtain violation in and
of itself (Tr. 17). However, since a conplete mning cycle had
occurred, he believed that dusty conditions probably prevail ed
because of the failure to extend the curtain in question (Tr.

18).

On cross-exam nation, M. Jones testified as to his
assunptions regardi ng the presence of the | oader he observed
com ng out of the entry after he cited the viol ations. However,
he was not prepared to state that the | oader was in the face
area. Assum ng the | oader had just gone into that area and
scooped out sone coal, it probably woul d have generated sone
dust. However, he conceded that the | oader would not have
generated much dust since the gob being scooped would be in a
pile, and it would constitute 50 percent clay and rock (Tr.
19-24). Inspector Jones assuned the | oader had been working at
the face because coal had been cut and the gob renoved. He did
not check for nethane (Tr. 27-28).

Wth regard to the notations nade on his inspector's
statenment concerning the gravity of the ventilation curtain
violation, particularly the fact that diesel equipnent enmts
fumes, M. Jones candidly admtted that the statenent was based
on what he believed would have occurred in the nornmal course of
m ni ng, rather than what he actually observed (Tr. 30-34). M.
Jones could not recall reviewing the preshift exam ner's reports
on the day of the citations (Tr. 35). He also indicated that he
did not believe there was any direct relationship in the anmount
of air recorded at the | ast open crosscut and the anount of air
at the working faces (Tr. 37-39). Although he observed sone check
curtains in disrepair, he saw no one inby those curtains, nor did
he observe any equi pnent there (Tr. 46). The gist of the
violation was the fact that the line curtain was installed 22
feet outby the face, the face had been advanced, and one m ni ng
cycl e had been conpleted with no additional curtain being
installed (Tr. 48). When he arrived on the scene, no one was at
the face and no line curtain was installed (Tr. 51). Regarding
his previous testinony concerning the roof conditions in the mne
in question, M. Jones indicated that they were "average," and,
al t hough sonme roof areas sounded drunmy, he could not be sure
that this was indicative of the fact that it mght fall (Tr.
54-55). Roof falls on the section in question were rare (Tr. 55).
However, drumry roof and cracked



~16

roof is indicative that it would probably fall (Tr. 57). He did
not mean to inply that this roof condition prevail ed throughout
the mne, but only at the location of the violation (Tr. 57).

M. Jones did not know the nunber of tines the m ne was
cited for violations of section 75.200 (Tr. 59). He was not aware
of the fact that the Assessnent Ofice may wai ve the nornal
assessnment fornula used to assess penalties, but was aware of the
fact that inspectors' statenents are used in assessing penalties
(Tr. 73). Regarding Violation No. 7-0013 (Exh. P-20), Inspector
Jones testified that the reason he noted a "possible roof fall"
on his inspector's statenment (Exh. P-22), while explaining in
some detail in the "Remarks" on the other statenments dealing with
the other roof violations, was the fact that the conditions were
different. In the case of this violation, the roof was not
cracked (Tr. 77). Although the fact that the roof was cracked,
drumy, and flaking in sone areas, he did not see any significant
difference in a roof condition which was not cracked, insofar as
the probability of a roof fall was concerned (Tr. 78). Regarding
his definition of "probable,” he believed it does not nean
greater than 50 percent, not necessarily greater than 30 percent,
and possibly greater than 20 percent, depending on the prevailing
conditions, such as equi pnent being used, roof supports, blasting
techni ques, etc. (Tr. 79).

John Danio was recalled as a witness for the respondent, and
testified that he was present in the courtroom when | nspector
Jones testified as to roof cracks. M. Danio stated that what
somet i nes appears to be roof cracks may, in fact, be face cleats
or butt cleats which are natural phenonena which appear in coa
pillars, and this structural phenonena is associated with al
coal formations (Tr. 91). Gven the lighting conditions in a
m ne, he does not believe that he woul d nmistake such a cleat for
a roof crack. Such cleats have a trend and direction; they can be
mapped and identified as cleats (Tr. 92). He also testified that
he was famliar with mne ventilation, and testified that the
amount of air at the last crosscut is indicative of the anmount of
air that is available to ventilate a face. Since the mne does
not have met hane, sweeping mine ventilation characteristics are
not critical, and a machi ne operator sitting at the controls
woul d not be affected by diesel funes, since the fan ventilation
will carry the fumes away fromhim Further, he would not be
adversely affected by dust since he is away fromthe face area
(Tr. 90-95).

On cross-exam nation, M. Danio conceded that he did not
personal |y observe any of the conditions cited by Inspector Jones
at the tine the citations were issued, nor did he observe any
cracks in the roof entry. Assuming the line curtain was 22 feet
away fromthe face and in disrepair, as testified to by Inspector
Jones, he assuned that 6,000 cfns of air would not reach the face
(Tr. 95-97).
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

The follow ng findings and concl usions as to size of
busi ness, effect of penalty assessnents, and history of
violations apply to all dockets.

Si ze of Business and Effect of Penalties Assessed on the
Respondent's Ability to Remain in Business

The evidence and testinony adduced reflects that the mne in
guestion is a one-section mne enploying approxi mtely 25
i ndi vidual s working two shifts a day (Tr. 12). Respondent's
Exhibit R4, is a weekly report ending Novenber 5, 1978, show ng
a total of 21 production enployees, 4 admnistrative workers, and
4 truck drivers enployed at the mne, and the average estinated
yearly coal production to Novenber 5, is shown as 73,822 tons.
Al t hough respondent’'s counsel questioned the accuracy of his own
figures (Tr. 74-75), they are estimated figures, and respondent
was afforded an opportunity to file additional information (Tr.
214). M. Danio testified that in addition to the mne in
guestion, respondent al so operates an open-pit gold I eeching
operation in Carlin, Nevada, and the total conpany enploynment is
about 75 or 100. Government Exhibit P-26, a MSHA report, shows
1976 coal production as 65,471 tons and 1977 production as 83, 354
tons (Tr. 202-206). Based on all of the available information
presented in these proceedings, | find that respondent is a smal
m ne operator and that fact is reflected in the penalties
assessed by ne in these proceedings.

Respondent presented no evidence that any penalties assessed
by me in these proceedings will adversely affect its ability to
remai n i n business. Under the circunstances, | conclude they wll
not .

H story of Prior Violations

Petitioner submitted a conputer printout representing the
prior history of violations at the Dog Valley Mne (Exh. P-27),
and that history was received in evidence with no objections by
respondent (Tr. 100, Nov. 16). Respondent was afforded an
opportunity to file any posthearing corrections to the printout
(Tr. 101), but has not done so and has not addressed the issue in
its posthearing brief or proposed findings and concl usi ons.
Petitioner stipulated that the m ne has no prior history of any
fatal roof falls (Tr. 12, Nov. 15).

The conputer printout reflects a total of 226 prior
violations for which civil penalties were assessed and paid by
t he respondent during the period January 9, 1976, to Decenber 19,
1977. Taking into account the size of respondent’'s operation,
conclude that this reflects a noderately significant prior
history of violations and this fact is reflected in the penalty
assessnents nade by ne in these proceedi ngs.
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DOCKET NO DENV 78-521-P

Fact of Violation--30 CFR 75.517

Inits answer filed Septenber 18, 1978, respondent denied
that a violation of 30 CFR 75.517 occurred, and asserted that the
scoop tire was not on the cable in question, but nmerely next to
it, and that this fact was confirmed by M. Joe Tenery, the
foreman, and M. Roger Bl ack, a nechanic who was present at the
site at the tine of the inspection. Further, respondent asserted
that inspection of the cable, follow ng the issuance of the
noti ce, showed no damage to the cable.

Petitioner's position with respect to this violation is that
the cable in question nust be protected at all tinmes, and the
potential for cable damage is not only damage to the outer
i nsul ati on, but danage to the inner wires and insulation as well.
In such a case, a short-circuit may occur, and while it is true
that the short-circuit protection would work, crossed wres may
not allowthis. Once a cable is hung, it should be hung in such a
way as to prevent it fromdropping on the floor where it may be
run over by equi pment. The fact that no one observed a cable
bei ng run over, does not excuse a violation because if it is run
over, damage may have resulted inside the cable, and no one woul d
know about it (Tr. 54-59).

I find that the preponderance of the evidence adduced in
this proceedi ng supports a finding of a violation of 30 CFR
75.517. The standard cited requires that power cables be
protected. The normal nethod by which the cable in question is
protected, is to hang it up off the mne floor so as to protect
it against being run over or danaged by equi prent. While the
i nspector believed the scoop tire was resting on the cable, and
the nmechanic believed it was nmerely lying next to the tire, the
fact is that the cable in question was |lying on the mne floor
t hereby exposing it to the possibility of being run over or
damaged by the scoop. Further, the nechanic stated that the cable
is normally stored along the rib in a cut nmade for that purpose,
and at the time of the citation, it had apparently fallen from

the rib and was resting on the floor. | find that petitioner's
interpretation of the standard in question is a reasonable and
correct one, and in the circunstances, | find a violation has

been est abl i shed.
Gavity

The i nspector considered the violation to be nonserious, and
petitioner's counsel stipulated that the citation was nonseri ous,
but that the practice of running over a cable was serious (Tr.
37-38). Petitioner has presented no evidence that respondent
makes it a practice to run over cables, and the notice of
vi ol ati on makes no such charge. Accordingly, | find that the
violation is nonserious.
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Good Faith Conpliance

The evi dence adduced reflects that the violation was
i medi ately abated within 5 mnutes, and in the circunstances,
concl ude that respondent exercised rapid conpliance once the
citation issued.

Negl i gence

Fromthe evidence presented, it would appear that the cable
in question fell fromits normal storage place alone the rib
whil e the respondent was in the process of nmoving a power unit.
The inspector testified that the violation was not intentional
and that it is easy for the scoop operator not to have seen the
cable in question because of its position along the rib and the
| arge size of the scoop which he was operating at the tinme of the
citation. In this instance, he believed the scoop operator
probably did not see the cable. In the circunstances, | cannot
conclude that the operator was negligent in this instance and
find that he could not reasonably have known of the condition
cited. In the circunstances, | find that the respondent was not
negl i gent.

DOCKET NO. DENV 78-522-P
Fact of Violation--30 CFR 75. 313

Inits answer filed Septenber 18, 1978, respondent conceded
a violation of 30 CFR 75.313, but contested the penalty
assessnent of $120 as excessive on the grounds that: (1)
respondent has an excellent record showi ng few citations for
significant past violations, (2) due to the size of its mning
operation, the assessnment is inappropriate, (3) there is no
evi dence that respondent was negligent, (4) the violation was not
grave since i medi ate testing detected no nethane, the
nmet hanonet er was checked pronptly upon notification of the
violation and repaired i nmedi ately upon recei pt of necessary
parts, and (5) upon issuance of the order, inmedi ate steps were
taken to abate the violation. At the hearing, the respondent
agai n conceded and stipulated to the fact of violation of the
provi sions of section 75.313, and indicated that it was
contesting only the $120 initial civil penalty assessnent |evied
with respect to the violation (Tr. 59). In the circunstances, |
find that a violation has been established.

Good Faith Conmpliance

During the course of the hearing in this matter
petitioner's counsel asserted that at the tine the order issued,
good faith was nonexi stent because the problemwth the
mechani cal |inkage probably existed all along and it took an
order to gain conpliance. However, the record shows that the
respondent was having problens with the nmethane nonitor which
wer e obviously recognized by the inspector, since he issued
several extensions of his notice. Inspector Lenon
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conceded that on nany occasions he will note on his notice that
parts are needed to repair a piece of equipnment and that he uses
this as justification for extending the abatenent tinme. He
conceded that this is what occurred in this case and that he

all owed 8 days to obtain parts because the mine is in a renote
area and parts nust be obtained fromPrice, Uah. |Inspector Lenobn
al so candidly admtted that he did not believe that the
respondent was using the fact that parts were required as an
excuse for not conplying with the abatenment, and conceded t hat
parts were "probably" needed. In the circunstances, and based on
the totality of the evidence presented, | conclude that

respondent abated the violation in good faith, and under the

ci rcunmst ances presented, exercised normal good faith in achieving
abat enment .

Gavity

Petitioner stipulated that this violation was nonseri ous,
and that is ny finding (Tr. 73).

Negl i gence

An initial preshift or onshift inspection by the operator
shoul d have detected the inoperative nonitor. | find that the
respondent shoul d have known about the inoperative condition of
the nmethane nmonitor in question and that it failed to exercise
reasonabl e care in preventing the condition cited. This
constitutes ordinary negligence.

Fact of Violation--30 CFR 75. 200

Inits answer filed Septenber 18, 1978, respondent denied
that the violation occurred and contested the citation, but did
not contest the proposed assessnment of $115. As grounds for its
contest of the citation, respondent asserted that: (1) it has an
excel l ent record showi ng few past significant violations, (2)
there is no evidence of negligence, the violation was not grave
since no mning was taking place at the tine of the inspection
and the only enployees in the face area were tinber men who were
resetting the roof supports which had been renoved to all ow
nmovenent of machi nery and cl eani ng behind the curtains. Further
respondent asserted that the roof had been checked in all seven
faces of the mine both before and after the notice was issued and
appeared sound, and even in the absence of supports, a roof fal
was hi ghly inprobable. Further, respondent asserted that if the
roof plan subnmitted by respondent on May 19, 1978, and approved
by the Mne Safety and Health Adm nistration on May 30, 1978, had
been in effect at the time of the inspection, when the nine roof
conditions were the sane as they were when the new plan was
approved, the alleged violation would have been, at nost, de
m nims and probably nonexistent.
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At the hearing on Novenber 15, 1978, respondent proposed to
abandon its contest altogether with respect to the violation and
nmoved to withdraw its contest with respect to both the fact of
violation and the proposed assessnent and indicated that it no
| onger wi shed to contest the violation and desired to pay the
initial proposed assessnent of $115 (Tr. 7-8). Petitioner opposed
the nmotion to withdraw and respondent's offer to pay the
assessnment (Tr. 7-8). The parties were afforded an opportunity to
present argunents on the record with respect to respondent’'s
nmotion to withdraw its contest (Tr. 91-121).

In support of its opposition to respondent's notion to
conpletely withdraw its contest, petitioner argued that once a
petition for assessment of civil penalty is filed by MSHA, any
proposed settlenent nust be agreed to by MSHA and approved by ne
in accordance with the Commi ssion's rules. Petitioner's counse
asserted that he could not agree with respondent's offer of
paynment since he believed the facts warrant an assessment higher
than that nmade by the assessment officer for the violation in
guestion. Petitioner views respondent's attenpts to wthdraw at
t he hearing stage of the proceeding as an offer to settle the
matter and that petitioner does not agree to any settlemnent.
Since the matter is de novo before ne, petitioner asserted that |
am not bound by the prior assessment and should proceed with the
matter and decide not only the question of violation, but also
t he amount of penalty to be assessed, taking into account the
statutory criteria for assessnment of civil penalties.

In support of its notion to withdraw, respondent argued that
it sinply wi shes to abandon its appeal and pay the assessnent,
and that the question of settlement is immterial. Respondent's
counsel conceced that settlenment discussions were, in fact,
conduct ed between the parties, but that petitioner took the
position that unless respondent agreed to abandon all of the
section 75.200 violations at issue in the other dockets which are
t he subject of these proceedings, petitioner would not agree to
the settlenment of the instant case. That proposal was
unacceptable to the respondent, and citing Comm ssion Rule 29 CFR
2700. 15(a), counsel argued that respondent has a right to
wi t hdraw a pl eading at any stage of the proceeding with the
approval of the Commi ssion or one of its judges. Since counse
views the notice of contest as a pleading, he argued that it may
be withdrawn at any tinme and that | have sole discretion in the
matter, regardl ess of whether or not petitioner agrees to the
wi thdrawal . Wth respect to Comm ssion Rule 2700.27(c), dealing
wi th Comm ssion approval s of proposed settl enments, counsel took
the position that the rule only deals with contested penalti es,
and since respondent did not contest the penalty assessed for the
violation, that rule is inapplicable.

After consideration of the argunents made at the hearing,
respondent's notion to withdraw its contest was deni ed and
respondent was afforded an opportunity to present any evidence it
desired in support
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of its position regarding any penalty assessnment to be nmade by ne
with respect to the violation (Tr. 116-118).

Respondent's reliance on Conm ssion Rule 2700.15(a) in
support of its notion to withdraw its contest, is rejected. As
noted i n Ranger Fuel Corporation, 2 IBVA 186 (1973), once a
petition for assessment of civil penalty is filed with a judge,
jurisdiction vests, and the request for a hearing on the nerits
of the petition, not being a pleading, may not be withdrawn. In
addition, it is well settled that civil penalty proceedi ngs
bef ore the Conmi ssion or one of its judges is a de novo
proceedi ng, and that the prior proposed assessnent nmade pursuant
to Part 100, Title 30, Code of Federal Regulations, is in no way
controlling. See Gay Coal, Inc., 7 IBMA 245 (1977); Boggs
Construction Conpany, 6 IBMA 252 (1976); Lewis Coal Conpany, 6
| BVA 263 (1976). The jurisdiction of the judge to proceed in a
civil penalty proceeding is not affected by the nethod of
conputation utilized by the Ofice of Assessnents in arriving at
an initial proposed civil penalty. Buffalo M ning Conpany, 2 |BNA
226 (1973); Eastern Associ ated Coal Corporation, 3 IBVA 132
(1974). Further, it is also clear that a judge | acks the
authority to order MSHA to recompute proposed assessnents of
civil penalties. dinchfield Coal Conmpany, 3 IBMA 154 (1974);
Consol i dati on Coal Company, 3 IBMA 161 (1974).

I amof the viewthat my responsibility under the lawin a
contested proceeding, in which a mne operator has requested a
hearing, is to afford himthat opportunity and to adjudicate the
case and issue a decision based on the record nade at the
hearing, including a realistic and even-handed consi deration of
the statutory criteria with respect to the assessnment of civil
penal ti es whi ch have been proven by a preponderance of the
evi dence.

On the facts presented in this case, | conclude that
respondent's untinmely attenpt to withdraw its contest at the
hearing and its offer to pay the initial assessnent is an offer
of settlenent which nust be concurred in by MSHA and approved by
me pursuant to Rule 2700.27(d). Since MSHA did not agree to the
proposed settlenent, there is nothing to approve, and ny previous
ruling made at the hearing, denying respondent's notion to
withdraw, is reaffirned.

Responded conceded the fact of violation, and, in addition
after consideration of the testinony and evi dence adduced by
petitioner and respondent with respect to the citation, I
concl ude that the record supports a finding of a violation of
section 75. 200.

Negl i gence

Except for the testinony of M. Danio, respondent presented
no testinmony in defense of the cited condition. M. Danio did not
view the condition cited and had no personal know edge of the
condition which the inspector observed. The inspector believed
the face boss
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shoul d have been aware of the fact that the tinbers were not
installed. The fact that he may not have been in the area during
the cl eanup or when the citation issued is immuaterial. An
operator is presuned to know the requirenents of his own roof
control plan and the section foreman is responsible for seeing to
it that the plan is followed during his working shift. I find
that the respondent failed to exercise reasonable care to prevent
the violation, and that this constitutes ordi nary negligence.

Gavity

I nspector Lenon testified that at the time he observed the
condition cited, he observed a | oader com ng out of the area of
unsupported roof with a | oad of coal. However, he saw no one el se
there and no coal drilling or shooting was taking place. He
tested the roof and it was not drumy, and at the point where the
| ast support was installed, the roof was sound. Beyond t hat
point, the roof appeared to be sound upon visual inspection and
he observed no cracks. Although he indicated that the probability
of a roof fall increases when pillars are pulled, in this
instance, no pillars had been pulled, and the entry and worKking
faces were not taking weight.

In this case, the inspector could not conclude whether the
violation in question was serious, and indicated that his gravity
statement shoul d have indicated "inprobable,” rather than
"probable."” However, the fact remains that the required roof
support was not installed and the | oader operator was observed
comng fromthe area. Wiile the actual roof conditions up to the
poi nt of |ast roof support were good and the roof area
i medi ately beyond that point appeared sound upon visua
i nspection, the inspector did not venture beyond that point to
test the roof because additional tinbers had not been install ed.
Roof falls are unpredictable, and unsupported roof presents a
hazard to m ners working in such areas. In the circunstances, |
find that the condition cited presented a potential danger of a
roof fall and consequently, | conclude that the violation was
seri ous.

Good Faith Conpliance

The inspector testified that the section crew began the
installation of the required roof tinbers within 10 m nutes of
hi s maki ng his neasurenments to support the citation. | find that
this constituted rapid abatement of the cited violation and good
faith conpliance

DOCKET NO. DENV 78-523-P
Fact of Violation--30 CFR 75. 316
In its answer of Septenber 18, 1978, respondent denied that

it was in violation of its ventilation plan or section 75. 316,
and
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asserted that no violation of section 75.316 was alleged in the
citation, that the ventilation plan in effect at the tinme of the
citation required that line curtains be maintained to within 12
feet of the area of deepest penetration in any face when coal is
being cut, mned or | oaded, and since no cutting, mning or

| oadi ng of coal was taking place at the time of the inspection
there is no violation. In support of its opposition to the
proposed assessnent of $1,200, respondent argued that the amunt
is inappropriate in view of its excellent past history of
violations, its size of business, |ack of negligence, and pronpt
abat ement upon issuance of the order. Further, respondent argued
that the violation was not grave in that testing in the nine
established that there was sufficient ventilation to keep met hane
levels in the mne below 1.0 vol une per centum as required by
section 75.308.

Failure by an operator to conply with any provision of its
ventilation plan constitutes a violation of the provisions of 30
CFR 75. 316. Peabody Coal Conpany, 8 IBMA 121 (1977); Valley Canp
Coal Conpany, 3 IBMA 176 (1974); Zeigler Coal Conpany v. Kl eppe,
536 F.2d 398 (D.C. Gr. 1976). The fact that coal was not being
cut or loaded at the precise noment that the inspector arrived on
the scene and observed that the line curtain had not been
advanced as required is inmaterial, and respondent's proposed
interpretation of the standard cited is rejected. It is clear to
me fromthe testinmony by the inspector that the curtain in
guesti on had not been advanced while coal was being cut, m ned,
and | oaded during the shift preceding his inspection, and
respondent has presented no evidence to rebut this testinony.
VWere an inspector describes a condition alleging a violation
whi ch occurred during the working shift immediately preceding the
shift in which the inspection is nmade, a prima facie violation
may be found on the basis of the inspector’'s findings that he
could find no evidence of conpliance. Rushton M ning Conpany, 6
| BVA 329 (1976). Here, the order issued by the inspector
described the condition which he believed constituted a
viol ation, and he specifically cited section 75.316, as did the
petition for assessment of civil penalty. Consequently,
respondent's contention that the citation failed to cite the
standard violated is rejected.

Based on the foregoing, | find and conclude that the
petitioner has established a violation of 30 CFR 75. 316 as
charged in the citation.

Gavity

The inspector testified that the Iine curtain violation
standi ng al one, would not have pronpted himto issue a closure
order (Tr. 17). Although he did testify that he found other |ine
curtains in disrepair, he did not cite the respondent for this
condition, and his notice is limted to the fact that the line
curtain in question was
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not extended the required distance to the face. | concl ude that
the seriousness of the situation presented nust be considered in
light of the prevailing conditions. Here, it is clear that the

i nspector did not take any air readings or otherw se test for
dust accunul ati ons, nethane, etc., and based his findings on
condi tions which he believed existed on the previous shift while
coal was being mned. Further, at the tinme the citation issued,
petitioner conceded that the area in question was not dusty, and
had been cleaned up (Tr. 24-25). Since petitioner has the burden
of proof, | cannot conclude that the violation was serious, even
t hough one may assune that the failure to extend the curtain in
guesti on may have had sone adverse inpact on the nine
environnent. Al though I have sustained the fact of violation on
the basis of inferences based on the inspector's finding that

m ni ng had taken place on the previous shift, absent any evi dence
as to what the actual prevailing conditions were at that tine, |
cannot concl ude that the question of the seriousness of a

vi ol ati on can be determ ned on inferences. Although the

i nspector's gravity statenent reflects that the cutting machine
and scoop operator were exposed to diesel fumes building up at
the face, it is clear that this was an assunption by the

i nspector. Respondent's testinony indicates that ventilation was
adequate, that the machi ne operators were operating away fromthe
face environment, that the fans installed on the equi pmrent woul d
di sperse any di esel funes, and no met hane buil dups were present.
The inspector did not check the preshift books, and he admitted
that at the tinme the violation issued, the mne ventilation
devices were in "good shape" since the required face ventilation
was being maintained (Tr. 225). Based on the totality of the
circunmstances presented, | find that this violation was

nonseri ous.

Good Faith Abat enent

I nspector Jones testified the entire crew was assigned to
correct the conditions cited, and petitioner stipulated that the
respondent exercised good faith in abating the violation (Tr. 12,
14). 1 find that the violation cited was abated in good faith by
t he respondent once it was issued, and that respondent exercised
normal conpliance in this regard.

Negl i gence

The inspector testified that the condition cited was readily
observabl e to anyone walking in the area where the line curtain
had not been advanced. He also testified that the section forenman
on duty during the period the citation i ssued advised himthat he
was not surprised at the conditions cited and that the preceding
shift had left the section "this way" in the past. Further, the
i nspector testified that after issuing the citation, he and the
m ne safety director went back to the section to observe the
conditions. Neither the safety director nor the section foreman
testified in this proceeding, and in the circunstances, the
i nspector's testinony
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i s unchal |l enged. Based on his testinmony, | can only concl ude that
t he respondent shoul d have been aware of the conditions cited,
that it failed to exercise reasonable care in preventing the
condition cited, and that its failure in this regard constitutes
ordi nary negligence.

Wth respect to Inspector Jones' testinony concerning the
conversation that he had with Section Foreman LaVall ey, |nspector
Jones produced the notes which he made concerning this
conversation at the tine he cited the violations which are in
i ssue in Docket No. DENV 78-523-P (Exh. P-31). His notes confirm
his testinmony that M. LaValley had admitted that the previous
shift had left the section in "this kind of situation,” and that
M. LaVall ey had expressed sonme concern over the fact that his
wor ki ng shift was being held responsible for the conditions of
the section.

I nspector Jones identified Exhibit P-31 as the notes which
he took with respect to the conversation he had with M. LaValley
at the tine he initially observed the conditions which led to his
citations, and the conversation he had with M. Sikes after
taki ng hi mback to the section to observe the conditions (Tr.
233). Respondent objected to the introduction of the notes nade
by I nspector Jones on the ground that the notes are not
cont enpor aneous, but rather, collateral notes on matters which
respondent was not aware of prior to the hearing. The essence of
respondent's objection is its assertion that failure to make the
notes available earlier in the proceedi ngs, deprived respondent
of an opportunity to nmake an informed judgnment as to whether it
should litigate the violations in the first instance. The
obj ection was overruled and the notes were received (Tr. 82, Nov.
16) .

Respondent' s counsel questioned |Inspector Jones regardi ng
his normal and usual practice with respect to notetaking. He
indicated that it was his usual practice to take notes so as to
be able to recollect what transpired with respect to a given
violation which is issued, that the notes are maintained in his
personal custody, and once witten, he does not change them nor
take them out of his personal notebook. He takes notes at the
mne site at the time of the citation, and his inspector's
statenments are witten up after he goes back to his office, and,
at times, he has referred to his notes in compiling these
statements (Tr. 83-88).

Respondent's objections to the introduction of the
i nspector's notes are again rejected and ny previous ruling in
this regard is reaffirmed. It is clear to ne that the notes in
guesti on were contenporaneous notes made at or near the tinme of
the i ssuance of the citation. The inspector was cross-exam ned
and respondent has not been prejudi ced. The inspector was free to
refresh his recollection fromhis notes, UMM v. Westnorel and
Coal Conpany, Conmmi ssion Docket No. 76-16, January 10, 1979.
Further respondent had anple opportunity
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to obtain the notes prior to hearing, but failed to avail itself
of the discovery procedures in this regard. Respondent's counse
was given an opportunity to review the notes at the hearing and
to cross-exam ne the inspector. Respondent could have called M.
LavVal ley as a witness, but did not do so. Consequently, in |ight
of all of these circunstances, respondent’'s assertions of "fou
pl ay" are rejected.

Respondent's preshift report for Decenber 30 (Exh. R-1),
contains a notation concerning "tinbers" for the No. 3 entry, but
no such notations for the Nos. 4 or 6 entries where the tinbering
citations were issued. However, respondent failed to call the
preshift exam ner who purportedly conducted the inspection and
prepared the report and | have given it little weight as any
i ndication that the conditions cited did not exist as charged.

Fact of Violation--30 CFR 75. 200

In its answer of Septenber 16, 1978, respondent contested
both the fact of violation and the proposed penalties assessed
for two violations of section 75.200 (7-0112, 7-0113), and its
defense was identical to that asserted in Docket No. DENV
78-522-P concerning Violation No. 8-0015, 75.200, issued January
30, 1978. As for its contest of the proposed assessnents of
$1,200 for each of the roof control violations in this docket,
respondent asserted that they are grossly disproportionate to the
anmount of penalty assessed for the subsequent simlar violation
i ssued in the previous docket ($115).

At the hearing of Novenmber 15, respondent conceded the fact
of violations and indicated that it desired only to contest the
anmount of the penalties assessed for Violation Nos. 7-0112 and
7-0113 (Tr. 7). In the circunstances, | find that respondent
viol ated the provisions of 30 CFR 75.200 as alleged in Gtation
Nos. 7-0112 and 7-0113, issued on Decenber 30, 1977. Aside from
respondent's admi ssion that it was in violation of the cited
standard, the evidence adduced by the petitioner in support of
its assertions that respondent violated the cited standard,
support a finding of violation in both instances. Further, it is
clear that the failure of a mne operator to conply with a
provision of its own roof control plan concerning roof support
consitutes a violation of section 75.200 of the mandatory safety
st andards. Peabody Coal Conpany, 8 IBMA 121 (1977); Affinity
M ni ng Conpany, 6 |IBMA 100 (1976); Dixie Fuel Conpany, Gay's
Knob Coal Conpany, 7 IBVMA 71 (1976).

Good Faith Abat enent

I nspector Jones testified that the entire crew was assi gned
to correct the conditions cited, and petitioner stipulated that
t he respondent exercised good faith in abating the violations
(Tr. 12, 14). | find that the violations cited were abated in
good faith by the respondent once they issued, and that
respondent exhi bited normal conpliance in this regard.
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Gavity

Al t hough | nspector Jones observed no nen working under the
unsupported roof areas or equi pnent operating in that area at the
time he issued the citations, the fact is that mning had taken
place in the areas cited on the previous shift, coal had been cut
and | oaded out, and the area cleaned up. Thus, it is clear to ne
that men had worked under unsupported roof during the previous
m ni ng cycles and were exposed to that hazard. The fact that the
roof did not fall on them does not detract fromthe fact that
wor ki ng under unsupported roof exposed the men working in those
areas to potentially hazardous and dangerous conditions.

The evi dence and testinony adduced by the respondent in
t hese proceedi ngs supports its contention that the roof
conditions in the mne are generally good, but this does not
excuse the failure of the respondent to install the roof supports
required by its plan. Further, the fact that the roof control
plan permtted the renmpval of one support post near the face to
facilitate the novenent and maneuvering of equi pnent during the
m ni ng cycle, does not excuse the failure to install the
remai ni ng posts required by the plan or to reinstall the posts
renoved once the mning cycle is conpleted. Here, the evidence
establishes that the respondent failed to install a total of at
| east 12 additional roof support tinbers in the three entries
cited by the inspector.

The fact that mine roof conditions are generally good does
not insure against roof falls which could occur at any tine in a
m ne as the mning cycle advances and conditions change. M.
Dani o confirned that sone roof settlenment does occur during
bl asting at the face, and while he also indicated that roof
faul ts have not been encountered, he based this on sone 50 roof
holes drilled over the 445 acres which conprise the limts of the
mne. Wiile it is true that the mne in question does not have a
history of roof falls, M. Danio did indicate that a roof fal
occurred approximately a year and a half ago, but that the
operator was aware of the | oose roof conditions in that instance
and dangered the area off. He also indicated that sonme roof
flaking occurs in older mne areas and snmall pieces of roof coa
have been found in areas nore recently m ned.

As for the actual roof conditions which existed at the tine
of the citations, Inspector Jones indicated that the roof in the
No. 3 entry was not cracked. As a matter of fact, his testinony
does not reflect the actual roof conditions which existed at the
area cited in Gtation No. 7-0013. As for the roof conditions
which existed in the No. 4 entry (Gtation No. 7-0012), he
testified that it was cracked, drumy, and flaking, inby the |ast
roof support, and this testinony remains unrebutted.
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I find that both violations were serious. Men were worki ng under
unsupported roof and were exposed to a potential hazardous
situation, particularly in the No. 4 entry.

Negl i gence

Both of the roof suport citations in this case were cited by
| nspect or Jones during his inspection on Decenber 30, and the
citations involve the failure of the respondent to nmaintain roof
support tinbers to within 15 feet of the face in entry Nos. 3 and
4 in the Sout hwest section of the mne, as required by its
approved roof control plan. Inspector Jones testified that he
bel i eved the conditions cited existed for at |east two mning
cycl es because each cycl e advances sone 10 to 11 feet, and since
the tinbers which were in place at the tinme of his inspection
were installed to within 44 feet of the face in the No. 4 entry,
and to within 33 feet of the face in the No. 3 entry, he believed
that mning had advanced at |east two cycles during the previous
shifts without the installation of additional roof support
tinmbers. He also indicated that coal had been cut during these
previous shifts and that the entries were | oaded out and cl eaned,
but no additional roof support was installed. Further, when he
confronted the section foreman with the conditions of the
entries, the section foreman candidly admtted that the tinbers
were not installed, admtted that he was aware of this fact, and
attributed the failure to install the required roof supports to
the fact that the previous shift had left the section in the
condition found by M. Jones. Subsequently, when Safety Director
Hal es was taken to the area cited by M. Jones, M. Jones rel ated
to himwhat the section foreman had told him and according to
M. Jones' testinmony, M. Hal es expressed sone enbarrassnment over
the conditions of the entries, as did M ne Engi neer Sikes, who
M. Jones clains agreed with his findings.

Except for the testinony of M. Danio, respondent failed to
call any other w tnesses in defense of the roof support
citations. Thus, Inspector Jones' testinony, docunented by his
notes taken at the tinme in question, has not been rebutted by the
respondent. After listening to M. Jones' testinony and view ng
himon the stand during the course of the hearing in this matter
| find himto be a credible witness and | accept his testinony
concerni ng the conversations he had with m ne managenment wth
respect to the conditions he found at the tine of the citations.
As for M. Danio's testinony, he was not present when the
citations were issued, nor did he view the conditions cited by
M. Jones. However, M. Danio candidly admtted that one possible
expl anation for the failure to install the additional roof
supports in question was "bad mning practices" and "probl ens”
whi ch have occurred in the past (Tr. 208).

Based on the foregoing, | believe it is clear that the
respondent was well aware of the fact that the required roof
support tinmbers were not installed as required by its own roof
control plan.
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VWil e the evidence presented by the petitioner suggests a
somewhat cavalier attitude by m ne nanagenment with respect to its
own roof support plan then in effect, and borders on gross
negl i gence, | cannot conclude that the record supports a finding
of a deliberate and reckless disregard for safety. Wile the
section foreman on the shift in question adntted he was aware
that the tinbers were not installed, he attributed this to

i naction by the previous shift, and M. Danio attributed it, in
part, to bad mining practices. None of the mne personnel from
the previous shift were called to testify by either the
petitioner or the respondent and there is no explanation as to
why the required tinmbers had not been installed after the area
was m ned and cl eaned up.

In view of the foregoing, |I find that the respondent failed
to exerci se reasonable care to prevent the violation and fail ed
to exercise reasonable care to correct the cited conditions which
it knew existed, and that this failure on its part constitutes
ordi nary negligence as to both section 75.200 Ctation Nos.
7-0112 and 7-0113.

DOCKET NO. DENV 78-524-P
Fact of Violation--30 CFR 75. 200

In its answer of Septenber 18, 1978, respondent contested
both the alleged violation and the proposed penalty assessnent of
$500, and its arguments in support of its contest were the sane
as those made in the previous dockets. However, at the hearing,
respondent conceded the fact of violation and contested only the
amount of the proposed civil penalty (Tr. 7). | find that the
evi dence adduced establishes a violation of section 75.200.

Good Faith Abatenment and Negligence

My previous findings and conclusions, with respect to good
fai th abat enent and negligence concerning the roof support
violations in Docket No. DENV 78-523-P, Citation Nos. 7-0112 and
7-0113, are herein incorporated by reference as ny findings and
concl usi ons concerning Ctation No. 7-0110 in this docket. I find
t hat respondent exercised normal good faith conpliance in abating
the cited condition, and failed to exercise reasonable care to
prevent a condition which it knew existed and that this failure
on its part constitutes ordinary negligence.

Gavity

Wth regard to the actual roof conditions which existed in
the No. 6 entry at the tinme the citation issued, |nspector Jones
testified and confirmed his previous finding that the roof was
drummy and cracked. He also testified that he found sone 6 feet
of |l oose roof coal present inby the | ast support which was ready
to fall and had
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to be barred down. Wiile he did not know whether that condition
exi sted on the previous shift while men were working in that
area, it is reasonable to conclude that it did, and respondent
presented no testinony or evidence to rebut the inspector's
testinmony. In the circunstances, | conclude and find that the
violati on was serious.

Petitioner's Assessment Procedures and | nspector Practices

During the course of the hearing and in its posthearing
brief and proposed findings and concl usi ons, respondent
enphasi zed what it believes to be a nost inadequate and often
m sl eadi ng use of the inspector's statenent, a formusually
filled out by an inspector after a citation is issued. The form
contains information regardi ng negligence, gravity, and good
faith conpliance, and it is conpleted by the inspector who issues
a citation and used by the assessnent officer in evaluating a
particular violation and arriving at an initial civil penalty
assessnment. VWiile | amin agreenment with the respondent’s
observations that these statenments sonetime contain i nadequate
and unsupported concl usions, and often present only the
unf avorabl e portions of an inspector's coments or observations,
| cannot conclude that this results fromany deliberate or
consci ous effort by the inspector to bolster or support his
actions. For the nost part, | believe the practices conpl ai ned of
result fromthe use of standardized subjective fornms which place
the inspector in the position of making a one-sided evaluation in
order to support the action taken by him Further, once the
matter is referred to the assessnent officer, unless there is
some input by the operator at a conference, the only information
avai l able to the assessnent officer is the bare notice and the
i nspector's statenent.

One exanpl e of what | consider to be a m sleading
i nspector's statenment is Exhibit P-9, dealing with a violation of
section 75.313 (Docket No. DENV 78-522-P). Although the inspector
checked several of the gravity blocks, he indicated "none" under
the "Remarks" portion of the form conpletely struck out the
"Good Faith" portion, and indicated that 20 workers were exposed
to the hazard presented by the violation. During the hearing, the
i nspector testified that he extended the notice several tines
because of needed parts to repair a nethane nonitor, that he nmade
a mstake in noting that 20 m ners were exposed to any hazard,
when, in fact, it should have reflected only those actually
wor ki ng on the shift, and that he crossed out the "CGood Faith"
portion of the form because he is instructed not to fill that
portion out when an order has been issued. While it woul d appear
fromthe evidence presented at the hearing, that the scoop in
guestion was initially renoved fromthe mne to effect repairs,
but subsequent probl ens ensued once the scoop was brought back
into the mne, and the violation was nonserious because of the
| ack of methane, those facts are not reflected in the inspector's
st at enent .
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Anot her exanple noted in these proceedings is Exhibit P-3,
concerning the cable violation (Docket No. DENV 78-521-P. The
i nspector's statenent indicates "probable” and "disabling"” under
the "Gravity" portion of the form when, in fact, the testinony
at the hearing reflected that the cable was di sconnected and not
energi zed, and the inspector testified that the viol ati on was
nonserious. While the formon its face contains a space for the
i nspector to note conditions or circunstances which nmight have
decreased the severity of the condition, it is sinply nmarked
"none" in the "Remarks" portion

| take note of the fact that the inspector who issued the
af orementi oned citations was a new i nspector who was sinply
attenpting to performhis duty to the best of his ability, and
the fact that he candidly admtted on reflection that his witten
anal ysis of the situation nmade at the tine of the event nay have
been sonewhat misleading is to his credit. However, this is an
area whi ch should be addressed by MSHA in its inspector training
prograns, particularly when it results in a sonewhat unrealistic
or subjective assessnent eval uation by an assessnent officer who
all too often is engrossed in applying "special fornulas" and
ot her such mathemati cal machinations in attenpting to apply the
criteria set forth in Part 100, Title 30, Code of Federa
Regul ati ons, to any given violation

Havi ng made ny observations with respect to probl ens which
are encountered with inspectors' statenents and the application
of Part 100, it is only fair to make some observations wth
respect to an operator who "sleeps” on his rights. In these
cases, the mine operator had a full and fair opportunity to avai
hi nsel f of the opportunity to submit any information pertaining
to the cited violations to the Assessnent Office and to request a
conference for the purpose of bringing to the attention of the
Assessnment OFfice mitigating circunstances which he believes
warrant consideration in arriving at a fair and equitable initial
civil penalty assessnent. Apparently, this was not done in these
cases. Further, the respondent presented little substantive
testinmony in defense of the cited violations and the principal
thrust of its case centered on an attack on MSHA s enforcenent
practices. Enforcenent of the Act and the promnul gated nandatory
safety and health standards lies with the Secretary and is solely
within his jurisdiction and authority. My jurisdiction is limted
to the adjudication of cases after the operator has been afforded
an opportunity to be heard. In these cases, | cannot concl ude
that the enforcenent practices conplained of by the respondent
were so arbitrary or capricious as to warrant dism ssal of the
citations and the petitions for assessnent of civil penalties
filed by the petitioner. To the contrary, | believe it is clear
fromthe record that the respondent has had a full and fair
opportunity to be heard and to present its defense.
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Concl usi on

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons,
respondent is assessed civil penalties for the violations which
have been established, as foll ows:

Docket No. DENV 78-521-P

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR Section Assessment
8- 0005 1/09/78 75. 517 $25

Docket No. DENV 78-522-P

8- 0010 1/19/ 78 75. 313 $25
8- 0015 1/ 30/ 78 75. 200 $250

Docket No. DENv 78-523-P

7-0111 12/ 30/ 77 75. 316 $150
7-0112 12/ 30/ 77 75. 200 $1, 000
7-0113 12/ 30/ 77 75. 200 $850

Docket No. DENV 78-524-P
7-0110 12/ 30/ 77 75. 200 $1, 000
ORDER
Respondent is ORDERED to pay the penalties assessed in these
proceedi ngs, as indicated above, in the total anount of $3, 300

within thirty (30) days of the date of these deci sions.

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



